
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

 

Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

Friday 12 February 2021 

9.00 am 

Virtual Meeting via MS Teams 
 

Members: 

Councillor Winter, Chair 

Councillor Drean, Vice Chair 

Councillors Allen, Mrs Bridgeman, Buchan, Sam Davey, Riley, Stevens and Wheeler. 
 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 

This meeting will be broadcast and will be available on-line for playback once the meeting 

has concluded. By joining the meeting, Councillors are consenting to being filmed during the 

meeting and to the use of the recording for the online viewing. 

 

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 

process please follow this link - Get Involved 
 
 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 

 

 Oversight and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Ballard House 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

 

Please ask for  Democratic Advisor 

T 01752  305155 

E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk 

www.plymouth.gov.uk 

Published 04 February 2021 

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings/getinvolved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative Change Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

1. Apologies    

  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Councillors. 

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

  

 Councillors will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on the 

agenda. 

  

3. Chair's Urgent Business    

  

 To receive reports on business which in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 

  

4. UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement - Fisheries  (Pages 1 - 20) 

 

 4.a   Exports of Fishery Produce from Great Britain to the EU and NI' (To Follow) 

   

5. Written  Evidence (Pages 21 - 26) 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 6 

 

OFFICIAL 

Brexit, Infrastructure and Legislative 

Change Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 

 

 

Date of meeting: 12 February 2021 

Title of Report: UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement – 

Fisheries 

Lead Member:   Councillor Tudor Evans OBE (Leader) 

Lead Strategic Director: Anthony Payne (Strategic Director for Place) 

Author: Evonne Ginman 

Contact Email:  Evonne.ginman@plymouth.gov.uk 

Your Reference: UK-EU Trade Fisheries 

Key Decision:  No 

Confidentiality: Part I - Official 

   

Purpose of Report 

To summarise the implications of the UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement on Plymouth’s fishing 

sector. 

 

 

Recommendations and Reasons 

For Panel to note the contents of the report. 

 

 

Alternative options considered and rejected 

Not applicable. 

 

 

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan   

Our Priorities – A Growing City – Economic growth that benefits as many people as possible 

How We Will Deliver – A strong voice for Plymouth regionally and nationally 

 

 

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     

None. 

 

 

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:  

None. 
 

 

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty: 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

Page 2 of 6 

 

OFFICIAL 

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote 

equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected 

characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not. 

None. 

 

Appendices  
*Add rows as required to box below 
 

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)  
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate  

why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A  

of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

A UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement – 

Fisheries Summary and Analysis 

       

 

Background papers:  

*Add rows as required to box below 

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works, 

relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

work is based. 

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 

is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

        

        

   

Sign off: 
 

Fin ba.2
0.21.
209 

Leg 3596

1/AC/

7/1/2

1 

Mon 

Off 

 HR  Asset

s  

 Strat 

Proc 

 

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  David Draffan (Service Director for Economic 

Development) 

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  Yes  

Date agreed: 07/01/2021 

 

Cabinet Member approval:  Councillor Tudor Evans OBE (Leader) (approved in briefing meeting) 

Date approved: 07/01/2021 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

Page 3 of 6 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement – Fisheries Summary and 

Analysis 
 

Summary 

 

i. Officers view that the Agreement is not a good deal for UK fisheries, especially for the English 

demersali fishing industry. It falls well short of what Ministers led the industry to expect. Except 

for relatively small groups of vessel owners in the pelagicii sector, the benefits are marginal and 

in some cases massively over-stated. 

 

Context 

 

ii. On 30 December 2020 an agreement was entered into between (1) the European Union and 

the European Atomic Energy Community and (2) the United Kingdom of Great Britain and 

Northern Ireland (“the Agreement”). The UK has become responsible, as an independent 

sovereign state, for jointly managing about 100 shared fish stocks with the EU. This is 

unprecedented and unique internationally. Additionally, the UK will be negotiating access 

directly with Norway and The Faroes, and has signed continuity agreements with both 

countries. 

 

iii. More than two thirds of UK fisheries production is exported to the EU, while most 

domestically consumed fish in the UK arrive from non-EU countries such as Iceland, Norway, 

Indonesia, India and Ghana, or from other parts of the world via processing plants in the EU. 

Exports to the EU will remain tariff free, but there are new non-tariff barriers such as catch 

certificates, export health certificates and the need for goods to go through Border Control 

Posts. Neither the UK Government nor industry were fully prepared for 1st January 2021; 

clarification is still required from the Government in a number of areas and systems have yet to 
bed down. There could be consequential difficulties for businesses through the supply chain 

over the coming months, and there are potentially long-term ramifications for the future 

structure of the industry. In the short term, government officials are hoping that the EU and 

member states will show some leniency whilst the new arrangements settle down, but Defra 

and its agencies have not yet fully addressed the longer term implications. 

 

Main features of the Agreement 

 

iv. The Agreement provides for: 

 

• The UK to have a larger share of the quotas for about 100 stocks it shares with the 

EU. UK vessels will be able to catch more fish and EU vessels fewer fish in UK waters. 

 

• The increases will be phased in over five years from 2021. The government has 

calculated that the total additional value to the UK at the end of this period will be 

£146m. 

 

• The Agreement contains detailed arrangements for setting annually the total allowable 

catch (TAC) of each of the shared fish stocks subject to quota. In many respects the 

process is similar to what happened when the UK was within the Common Fisheries 

Policy, except the UK will be negotiating with the EU as a third country. 

Page 3



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

Page 4 of 6 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

• Until June 2026 (the ‘adjustment period’), the EU and UK will have reciprocal rights of 

access to catch the allowable quotas, after which there will be annual negotiations on 

access. 

 

• EU vessels that have a historic track record will be able to continue to fish in the 6nm 

to 12nm zone of parts of the UK’s territorial waters – almost exclusively in English 

waters – for at least the next five and a half years, and most likely indefinitely. 

 
• The UK has reclaimed considerably more policy and regulatory autonomy. But, this is 

not unfettered. It has to act in accordance with the objectives and principles and follow 

the processes set out in the Agreement. 

 

• In common with other areas of trade and services, there is to be a joint UK-EU 

specialised committee that will be able to consider and agree fisheries management 

issues, data sharing, etc. The committee will be co-chaired by the UK and EU with a 

joint secretariat. 

 

• If the UK deviates from the access or quota available to EU vessels under the terms of 

Agreement, in the event of dispute, the EU can require the UK to pay compensation and 

can introduce tariffs not just on fish products but also other goods and services 

imported into the EU by the UK. The EC has made it clear that it will seek to protect 

EU fishing communities. 

 

Commentary 

 

v. Prior to the Agreement, the economic value of fisheries in UK waters for EU vessels 

represented £565m a year. The UK caught £98 million a year of landings in the EU's exclusive 

economic zone. After five and a half years there will still be a substantial imbalance. The £146m 

of additional quota in the government figures also overstates the real value to the UK industry, 

because no allowance has been made for actual catch levels by EU vessels (which in some cases 

have been below the quota ceilings) and does not take into account other opportunities that 

previously existed for the UK to increase fishing opportunities. 

 

vi. Since the Brexit referendum, Ministers have made great play of the UK moving towards a 

fairer distribution of fishing opportunities based on zonal attachment (the special distribution of 

fish stocks). There is no provision for this and the recalibrated quotas do not come close to 

previous exemplifications of zonal attachment allocations. 

 

vii. The changes to the UK’s overall share of quota vary enormously across the UK and 

between species. Substantial economic gains are likely to be enjoyed by relatively small groups 

of vessel owners in the pelagic sector. The gains in the South West will mostly be only marginal 

(see annex A) and, in particular, it is difficult to see the under 10m fleet (i.e. the majority of the 

boats) securing any worthwhile benefit. The extra bureaucracy will outweigh, for many, any slim 

uplift in quota; the fishing opportunities for the shellfish boats remain unchanged whilst 

exporting to the EU now involves a lot more paperwork. 

 

viii. The Government will need to reconsider its plans for the future allocation of quota, on 

which Plymouth City Council commented in November, as the uplift under the terms of the 

Agreement provides insufficient headroom. It seems likely that, any changes in the way quota is 

allocated in England, will be modest in 2021 and for some years later. 

 

Page 4



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

Page 5 of 6 

 

OFFICIAL 

ix. Meeting the obligations of the landing obligation in mixed fisheries, such as those in the south 

west, has been a challenge. There was a hope that rebalancing the EU and UK quota shares 

might assist. The additional quota will not be of much help and, dependent upon how the 

government responds, the situation could become more difficult. 

 

x. Ministers repeatedly confirmed that a primary aim of the Government was to secure the 

UK’s territorial waters for the exclusive use of UK vessels. This was one of the most important 

elements of the negotiations, for the catching sector. The Agreement allows EU vessels 

continued access around the English coast, which is a bitter blow to the UK industry. 
 

xi. At the end of five and a half years, the presumption in the Agreement is that nothing will 

change unless by mutual agreement. UK is locked in unless the government of the day is 

prepared to accept compensatory measures by the EU, which could include tariffs and 

withdrawing from other parts of the Agreement, not just on fisheries but also affecting other 

business sectors. The prospect of a UK government being willing to do this are slim. 

 

xii. Changes to the export rules affecting one sector in another part of the UK could have an 

adverse ripple effect elsewhere, including the south west, which are difficult to anticipate and 

mitigate. 

 

xiii. On a more positive note, the UK has reclaimed considerably more policy and regulatory 

autonomy. There could be useful opportunities for the UK Fisheries Administrations to 

improve transparency and to develop and introduce policies more suited to the unique nature 

of UK fisheries. However, the UK does not have a completely free hand and only time will tell 

the extent to which the UK will be able to take unilateral action. The Government has 

announced that it has banned pulse trawling by English and EU vessels (Scotland still has one 

vessel licenced to use this technique). This might turn into a test case if the Netherlands or the 

EC raise objections. 

 

xiv. The role of the specialised committee on fisheries, as a forum for considering and agreeing 

various fisheries management issues, and how this will play to the ambitions of the Fisheries Act 

2020 is not yet clear. For example, the extent to which the Joint Fisheries Statement and 

Fisheries Management Plans will be independent of agreement within the specialised committee 

on fisheries. 

 

xv. This paper covers only the Fisheries specific sections of the Agreement. As implementation 

begins to take effect we might find that aspects concerning trade, subsidies and regulatory 

autonomy will be affected by other provisions in the Agreement. 

 

Recommendations 

 

xvi. There will understandably be considerable disappointment and frustration within the fishing 

industry. However, in any situation, there are opportunities. Steps can be taken to seek greater 

clarity about the government’s intentions and to make representations on behalf of the local 

industry and the communities served. Plymouth City Council has been a strong supporter of 

the local industry and will want to ensure, as far as possible, that future government policies 

and regulatory systems recognise the contribution made by the industry and its needs. 

 

xvii. The Government has indicated that a funding package of £100m will be available. It will be 

important that these funds are effectively targeted – which will require fresh thinking and not 

just recycling processes and policies already found wanting. The industry will need assistance to 

recover, rebuild and modernise. 

 

Page 5



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

Page 6 of 6 

 

OFFICIAL 

i Demersal fish are found near the sea bed  
ii Pelagic fish live and feed away from the bottom of the sea bed 

                                            

Page 6



 1 

UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement – Fisheries 
 
 
Executive Summary  
 

i. The Agreement is not a good deal for UK fisheries, especially for the English demersal 
fishing industry.  It falls well short of what Ministers led the industry to expect. Except 
for relatively small groups of vessel owners in the pelagic sector, the benefits are 
marginal and in some cases illusionary.  

 
Context 
 

ii. The UK has become responsible, as independent sovereign state, for jointly managing 
about 100 shared fish stocks with the EU. This is unprecedented and unique 
internationally. Additionally, the UK will be negotiating access directly with Norway 
and The Faroes, and has signed continuity agreements with both countries.  

 
iii. More than two thirds of UK fisheries production is exported to the EU, while most 

domestically consumed fish in the UK arrive from non-EU countries such as Iceland, 
Norway, Indonesia, India and Ghana, or from other parts of the world via processing 
plants in the EU.  Exports to the EU will remain tariff free, but there are new non-tariff 
barriers such as catch certificates, export health certificates and the need for goods to 
go through Border Control Posts. Neither the UK Government nor industry were fully 
prepared for 1st January 2021; clarification is still required from the Government in a 
number of areas and systems have yet to bed down.  There could be consequential 
difficulties for businesses through the supply chain over the coming months, and there 
are potentially long-term ramifications for the future structure of the industry.  In the 
short term, government officials are hoping that the EU and member states will show 
some leniency whilst the new arrangements settle down, but Defra and its agencies 
appear to be blind or obdurate to the longer term implications.  

 
Main features of the Agreement 
 

iv. The Agreement provides for: 
 

• The UK to have a larger share of the quotas for about 100 stocks it shares with 
the EU. UK vessels will be able to catch more fish and EU vessels fewer fish in 
UK waters.  
 

• The increases will be phased in over five years from 2021.  The government 
has calculated  that the total additional value to the UK at the end of this period 
will be £146m.  

 
• The Agreement contains detailed arrangements for setting annually the total 

allowable catch (TAC) of each of the shared fish stocks subject to quota. In 
many respects the process is similar to what happened when the UK was 

Page 7



 2 

within the Common Fisheries Policy, except the UK will be negotiating with the 
EU as a third country. 

  
• Until June 2026 (the ‘adjustment period’), the EU and UK will have reciprocal 

rights of access to catch the allowable quotas, after which there will be annual 
negotiations on access.  

 
• EU vessels that have a historic track record will be able to continue to fish in 

the 6nm to 12nm zone of parts of the UK’s territorial waters – almost 
exclusively in English waters.  

 
• The UK has reclaimed considerably more policy and regulatory autonomy  But, 

this is not unfettered.  It has to act in accordance with the objectives and 
principles and follow the processes set out in the Agreement.  

 
• In common with other areas of trade and services, there is to be a joint UK-EU 

specialised committee that will be able to consider and agree fisheries 
management issues, data sharing, etc.  The committee will be co-chaired by 
the UK and EU with a joint secretariate. 

 
• If the UK deviates from the access or quota available to EU vessels under the 

terms of Agreement, in the event of dispute, the EU can require the UK to pay 
compensation and can introduce tariffs not just on fish products but also other 
goods and services imported into the EU by the UK.  The EC has made it clear 
that it will seek to protect EU fishing communities. 

 
Commentary  
 

v. Prior to the Agreement, the economic value of fisheries in UK waters for EU vessels 
represented £565m a year. The UK caught £98 million a year of landings in the EU's 
exclusive economic zone.1  After five and a half years there will still be a substantial 
imbalance. The £146m of additional quota in the government figures also overstates 
the real value to the UK industry, because no allowance has been made for actual 
catch levels by EU vessels (which in some cases have been below the quota ceilings) 
and does not take into account other opportunities that previously existed for the UK 
to increase fishing opportunities. 

 
vi. Since the Brexit referendum, Ministers have made great play of the UK moving 

towards a fairer distribution of fishing opportunities based on zonal attachment (the 
special distribution of fish stocks). There is no provision for this and the recalibrated 
quotas do not come close to previous exemplifications of zonal attachment allocations.  

 
vii. The changes to the UK’s overall share of quota vary enormously across the UK and 

between species.  Substantial economic gains are likely to be enjoyed by relatively 

 
1 Reference: https://ec.europa.eu/commission/presscorner/detail/en/qanda_20_2532 
 

Page 8



 3 

small groups of vessel owners in the pelagic sector.  The gains in the South West will 
mostly be only marginal (see annex A) and, in particular, it is difficult to see the under 
10m fleet (i.e. the majority of the boats) securing any worthwhile benefit.  The extra 
bureaucracy will outweigh, for many, any slim uplift in quota; the fishing opportunities 
for the shellfish boats remain unchanged whilst exporting to the EU now involves a lot 
more paperwork.   

 
viii. The Government will need to reconsider its plans for the future allocation of quota, 

on which Plymouth Council commented in November, as the uplift under the terms of 
the Agreement provides insufficient headroom.  It seems likely that, any changes in 
the way quota is allocated in England, will be modest in 2021 and for some years later.  

 
ix. Meeting the obligations of the landing obligation in mixed fisheries, such as those in 

the south west, has been a challenge.  There was a hope that rebalancing the EU and 
UK quota shares might assist. The additional quota will not be of much help and, 
dependent upon how the government responds, the situation could become more 
difficult.  

 
x. Ministers repeatedly confirmed that a primary aim of the Government was to secure 

the UK’s territorial waters for the exclusive use of UK vessels. The was one of the most 
important elements of the negotiations, for the catching sector.  The Agreement 
allows EU vessels continued access around the English coast, which is a bitter blow to 
the UK industry.  

 
xi. At the end of five and a half years, the presumption in the Agreement is that nothing 

will change unless by mutual agreement. UK is locked in unless the government of the 
day is prepared to accept compensatory measures by the EU, which could include 
tariffs and withdrawing other parts of the Agreement, not just on fisheries but also 
affecting other business sectors.  The prospect of a UK government being willing to do 
this are slim.  
 

xii. Changes to the export rules affecting one sector in another part of the UK could have 
an adverse ripple effect elsewhere, including the south west, which are difficult to 
anticipate and mitigate.  

 
xiii. On a more positive note, the UK has reclaimed considerably more policy and 

regulatory autonomy. There could be useful opportunities for the UK Fisheries 
Administrations to improve transparency and to develop and introduce policies more 
suited to the unique nature of UK fisheries. However, the UK does not have a 
completely free hand and only time will tell the extent to which the UK will be able to 
take unilateral action. The Government has announced that it has banned pulse 
trawling by English and EU vessels (Scotland still has one vessel licenced to use this 
technique).  This might turn into a test case if the Netherlands or the EC raise 
objections.  

 
xiv. The role of the specialised committee on fisheries, as a forum for considering and 

agreeing various fisheries management issues, and how this will play to the ambitions 

Page 9



 4 

of the Fisheries Act 2020 is not yet clear.  For example, the extent to which the Joint 
Fisheries Statement and Fisheries Management Plans will be independent of 
agreement within the specialised committee on fisheries.  

 
xv. This paper covers only the Fisheries specific sections of the Agreement.  As 

implementation begins to take effect we might find that aspects concerning trade, 
subsidies and regulatory autonomy will be affected by other provisions in the 
Agreement.   
 

What next?  
 

xvi. There will understandably be considerable disappointment and frustration within the 
fishing industry.  However, in any situation, there are opportunities.  Steps can be 
taken to seek greater clarity about the government’s intentions and to make 
representations on behalf of the local industry and the communities served.  Plymouth 
City Council has been a strong supporter of the local industry and will want to ensure, 
as far as possible, that future government policies and regulatory systems recognise 
the contribution made by the industry and its needs.   
 

xvii. The Government has indicated that a funding package of £100m will be available.  It 
will be important that these funds are effectively targeted – which will require fresh 
thinking and not just recycling processes and policies already found wanting.  The 
industry will need assistance to recover, rebuild and modernise.  

 
  

Page 10



 5 

 
 

UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement – Fisheries 
 
Introduction  
 

1. The UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement is a long and complex document.   
Although it contains a considerable volume of detail there are many areas, at this 
stage, where there is uncertainty about interpretation and practical implementation. 
This paper, therefore, discusses the generalities of the principal issues affecting 
fisheries  
 

Regulatory autonomy 
 

2. This was one of the key pillars of the Brexit campaign – ‘taking back control of our 
waters’.  The UK will have more autonomy, but it is not unfettered. The Agreement 
provides for each party (the UK and the EU) to be able to introduce management 
measures independently, subject to the measures being in accordance with the list 
of fisheries objectives and principles in the Agreement. These broadly accord with 
the objectives in the Fisheries Act, but the Agreement also specifies that they must 
be proportionate and non-discriminatory.  The UK and the EU cannot apply 
measures to the vessels of the other Party in its waters unless it also applies the 
same measures to its own vessels.  There might be wrangles in the future about 
what constitutes proportionate and non-discriminatory. 
 

3. Each Party is required to notify the other Party of new measures that are likely to 
affect the vessels of the other Party before those measures are applied, allowing 
sufficient time for the other Party to provide comments or seek clarification.  The 
UK Government announced on 31st December that it has banned pulse trawling by 
English and EU vessels. Although to be applauded, it will be interesting to see 
whether this becomes a test case as to whether this measure satisfies the terms of 
the Agreement relating to non-discrimination and adequate notification.  

Fairer shares of fishing opportunities?  

Quota  
 
Relative stability 
 

4. The Government were promising, “we will no longer be bound by the EU’s outdated 
method for sharing fishing opportunities. We are committed to moving away from 
relative stability to a fairer share of fishing opportunities for our fishing industry 

Page 11



 6 

across the British Isles.”2 This was to be based upon the “scientific principle of zonal 
attachment”. 3 
 

5. The Government’s rhetoric has changed.  All reference to zonal attachment has 
disappeared.  The Press Notice and the summary document published by the UK 
Government points to “….a significant uplift in quota for UK fishers, equal to 25% of 
the value the EU catch in UK waters. This is worth £146m for the UK fleet phased in 
over five years. It ends the dependence of the UK fleet on the unfair ‘relative stability’ 
mechanism enshrined in the EU’s Common Fisheries Policy, and increases the share 
of the total catch taken in UK waters taken by UK vessels to circa two thirds.”   

 
6. It is a moot point as to whether the UK has departed from relative stability, since all 

the adjustments are based on the relative stability formula. Essentially they are 
recalibrated percentages for individual stocks within the relative stability calculation 
(which was always a political divvy up loosely based on historic track record). The 
quota changes are phased over five years to 2025 and rolled over into 2026. 

How valuable are the quota increases to the UK?  

7. The value of the uplift appears to have been arrived at by aggregating the average 
first sale value of the individual stocks.  However, when seeking to assess the 
potential benefit to the UK and, in particular, to specific coastal areas, it is important 
to look at: 

• The changes to the UK’s share of individual stocks;  
•  The extent to which the increased shares of the Total Allowable Catch represent real 

additional fishing opportunities; 
• How the UK Government will distribute any increases in quota.  

8. Also, the two thirds equation in the government statement includes only the UK and 
EU, not Norway, which also has vessels catching fish in UK waters. Negotiations with 
Norway and the Faroes have not been completed, and the value of the fish the UK 
catches in its own EEZ seems unlikely to increase beyond about 60% overall. 

 
Quota changes in the south west  
 

9. Taking the individual quota first, if we look at the main stocks in the south west most 
of the changes are marginal.  These are shown in Annex A.  Quota is allocated 
according to species and by reference to ICES (International Council for Exploration 
of the Seas) areas.  A map showing the areas is at Annex B.  

 
10. When we reported to the Council in October on the results of the survey to assess 

the priorities of the fleet that lands to Plymouth, as part of formulating a response 

 
2 Defra, Fisheries: Quota allocation and management in 2021 and beyond: England and the Crown 
Dependencies, October 2021 
3 Victoria Prentice, Fisheries Minister, House of Commons debate, 23rd October 2020.  

Page 12



 7 

to the government’s consultation on allocating and managing quota in England we 
found the following: 

 
a. There were broadly consistent messages from all respondents about quota 

species priorities next year. Sole, skates and rays, anglerfish and plaice were 
consistently ranked high when asked what additional stocks were most 
important. Cod and pollack were also were included in this category by static 
gear vessels, whilst whiting and haddock were prioritised by towed gear 
respondents.   

 
b. At the other end of the scale, sprats, herring, horse mackerel, hake and 

megrim scored as least important across most gear types and vessel sizes. 
Megrim and hake are usually caught to the far west of the region.  It is likely 
that these were included in this category as they are not present on the local 
grounds fished by most vessels that land to Plymouth. But nevertheless they 
are important commercial species and, given the opportunity, vessels landing 
to Plymouth would be able to prosecute those fisheries successfully. 

 
11. It is a mixed picture when comparing Annex A to these relative priorities.  Valuable 

and species important to Plymouth,  such as sole have increased very little. Haddock 
which was prioritised by towed gears has increased from 10% to 20%, but whiting 
has remained unchanged.  Pollack has increased from 17% to 25%, but cod has 
hardly changed (and Eastern Channel cod has not changed at all).  The tonnages of 
fish that can be caught when the TACs are set and the effect on fish prices from, for 
example, the new non-tariff barriers to EU exports will have more bearing, in many 
instances, on the value of the stocks to the local industry than the quota changes.  

 
National quota changes 
 

12. It is a similar picture nationally.  Attached at Annex C is the table in the Agreement 
showing the changes by individual stocks between 2021 and 2026 onwards (a more 
meaningful comparison would be between 2020 and 2026). There are material 
increases across the five years for the UK for some stocks, such as hake in the North 
Sea (the UK’s share increasing from 39% to 53%, rising from 18% in 2020), horse 
mackerel in the southern North Sea and Eastern channel (29% to 40%, rising from 
11% in 2020), Celtic Sea Haddock (16% to 20%, rising from 10% in 2020), North Sea 
sole ( 12% to 17%, rising from 4% in 2020), Megrim in ICES area 7 (19% to 22%  rising 
from14% in 2020), and Nephrops in ICES area 7 (38% to 42%, rising from 33% in 
2020).  

 
13. On the other hand, some stocks important to the UK catching sector - especially in 

England - have seen only marginal increases. For example, sole in area 7e only rises 
from 61% to 62% (59% in 2020), sole in area 7fg rises from 31% to 32% (28% in 2020), 
cod in the Eastern Channel stays at 9%, plaice in area 7fg goes up from 25% to 26% 
(23% in 2020), and Monkfish in area 7 rises 21% to 23% (18% in 2020).   

 

Page 13



 8 

14. As in the south west, to better understand the real value of the additional quota 
gained, it is necessary to look at tonnage and the relative value of the fishery.  For 
example, the largest increases in volume are the pelagic species, Atlantic mackerel, 
North Sea herring and Norway pout, which together account for over a third of the 
estimated value of the UK’s additional quota shares.  

 
15. Almost without exception the UK’s share of quota for individual stocks is very 

substantially below the quantities that would be available under zonal attachment.  
 
All is not what is seems  when it comes to headline quota allocations 
 

16. The initial annual quota allocations within the CFP were in many instances the 
starting point.  During the year it was customary for there to be quota swaps 
between the UK and other member states, which facilitated access to additional 
quota for stocks important to the UK in exchange for quota likely to be under-used.  
It is not clear whether or how this might be replaced under the terms of the 
Agreement.  Exchanges of quota will be possible during the EU-UK annual 
negotiations and there is provision for the specialised committee on fisheries to set 
up a mechanism for in-year transfers of fishing opportunities, but there is no further 
detail.   

 
17. TACs are upper limits and quotas – even with swaps – are not always fully utilised. 

A proportion of the quotas ceded by the EU were not caught by EU vessels.  These 
are sometimes referred to as ‘paper fish’. The Scottish Government have claimed 
that because of this and the uncertainty about swaps, when comparing landings to 
quota, there will be a reduction in fishing opportunities in a number of instances for 
the Scottish whitefish fleet.  The same applies, for example, with North Sea sole and 
plaice and, domestically, the pool of quotas managed by the Marine Management 
Organisation (MMO) is commonly under-utilised. To state the obvious, additional 
quota is only of value if the fish are there to be caught.  

 
18. Another factor when making comparisons is the Hague preference mechanism.  This 

entitled the UK and the Republic of Ireland to claim additional shares of quota on 
top of relative stability for certain stocks.  Invoking the Hague Preference was 
discretionary on the part of the UK and Ireland and it was selectively deployed by 
the UK to increase quota for certain stocks, at the expense of other member states, 
to assist fishing communities in northern England and Scotland. It was also part of 
the UK’s broader negotiating toolkit within the CFP. The quota shares negotiated 
under the Trade and Cooperation Agreement do not take the Hague Preference into 
account and, therefore, overstate the gain in fishing opportunities.  

 
Distribution of quotas within the UK 
 

19. The UK Government issued three consultation papers in October last year 
concerning the distribution of quota within the UK.  It is evident that there will have 
to be a rethink about how additional quota might be employed.  The impact of the 

Page 14



 9 

proposed change to the ‘economic link’ will also need to be looked at again, in the 
light of the terms of the Agreement.   
 

Non-quota  
 

20. UK and EU vessels are able to fish for non-quota stocks in each other’s waters at a 
level that equates to the average tonnage fished during the period 2012-2016. 

Access 

21. It was very important to the UK catching sector, throughout the Brexit negotiations, 
that foreign vessels should no longer be permitted to fish in the UK’s territorial 
waters.  Assurances were given by Ministers, “the Government have been clear 
throughout that access to the UK’s territorial seas is out of scope for any fisheries 
framework agreement with the EU.  Any access negotiated with the EU will cover 
only the UK’s exclusive economic zone, and not the 0 to 12-mile zone.” 4 
 

22. In the event, this red line was crossed.  The Agreement provides for EU vessels with 
historic track record to be able to continue to fish in the 6nm to 12nm zone in ICES 
divisions 4c and 7d-g, provided the vessels had access on 31 December 2020 and at 
least four years between 2012 and 2016. There is a reciprocal arrangement for UK 
registered vessels being able to fish in EU waters in the same ICES divisions. 

 
There will be annual negotiations with the EU on TACs 

 
23. Although the framework has changed, there will be annual fisheries negotiations 

which will have familiar characteristics to the CFP processes. The Agreement 
expects the UK and the EU to agree TACs for each stock by 10th December following 
a process similar up to now.  It sets out in some detail the process to be followed. If 
agreement cannot be reached the UK and the EU will set a provisional TAC 
corresponding to the level advised by ICES, with each Party’s share being as set out 
in the Agreement, until agreement can be reached.  
 

24. The annual negotiations will, as within the CFP, be “on the basis of the best available 
scientific advice, as well as other relevant factors, including socio-economic aspects. ”  
The negotiations can also include transfers of shares of TACs between the UK and 
the EU, and cover fisheries management measures. 

Fish exports to the EU remain tariff free 

25. Tariffs will not be applied, but there is more paper work, for example, catch 
certificates, export health certificates, and other documentation, and goods will 
need to go through Border Control Points. It remains to be seen how these non- 
tariff barriers affect exports and the UK fishing industry.  There have already been 
some glitches and further difficulties can be anticipated. The potential ramifications 

 
4 Victoria Prentis, Fisheries Minister, House of Commons debate, Fisheries Bill, 13th October 2020 

Page 15



 10 

for day boats landing small qualities of high quality fish could be serious, as the UK’s 
internal control systems make it more complicated and arduous when purchasing 
and exporting from small boats.  
 

The south west could be affected by changes elsewhere 
 

26. Changes to the export rules or quota distribution in one part of the UK could have a 
ripple effect on another area.  An example, could be the new ban on importing crab 
claws from the UK into the EU.  This mostly directly affects the Scottish industry, but 
if exports are no longer possible alternative markets will need to be found.  This in 
turn could affect the crab businesses in the south west and other parts of England.  

 
Monitoring and enforcement   

 
27. Effective at sea monitoring and surveillance by the UK will become even more 

important, since we may not be able to rely upon the same level of cooperation by 
EU member states. But, this could be difficult to achieve, as it is not hard to imagine 
government departments’ budgets being squeezed and the MMO reverting to 
previous low levels of monitoring activity in the offshore area.   

 
Specialised Fisheries Committee 
 

28. The agreement provides for a Specialised Committee on Fisheries.  The Committee 
is empowered to consider and agree, inter alia, a range of matters of shared interest 
including measures for fisheries management and conservation, data collection and 
sharing, and joint control, monitoring and surveillance programmes.    

 
New Fisheries Grant  
 

29. Ministers have indicated that there is to be a new fisheries grant regime.  The 
Cabinet Office Minister, Michael Gove, said that £100m would be available “in the 
near future to help the industry to take full advantage of Brexit”.   Until we see the 
details it is not possible to know how useful the grant will prove to be, but £100m 
spread across the entire UK and possibly over 4 years – in replacement of EMFF - 
will not go far.  

 
What happens after five and a half years?  
 

30. The Agreement carries the expectation that the UK quota shares will continue to 
remain at the 2025 level from 2026 onwards.  Although the access arrangements 
can be varied during or at the end of the adjustment period by agreement, if there 
is dispute, either side can apply compensation measures including imposing tariffs 
on fisheries and other non-fisheries products or suspending other parts of the Trade 
and Economic Agreement.  It is very unlikely that any UK Government will choose 
to go down that road. The EU have already made it clear that they will seek to 

Page 16



 11 

protect the livelihoods of EU fishing communities reliant upon access to the fishing 
resources in the Agreement.  

 
31. If, before 2026, either the UK or the EU chooses to change the fishing opportunities 

of the other there are compensation arrangements and an arbitration procedure. 
Again, it seems unlikely that the UK Government would want to incur costs and risk 
having to pay compensation of face retaliatory measures by the EU. 

 
Conclusion 
 

32. Most of the UK fishing industry, with justification, will view this as a poor deal.  The 
negative effects will probably impact disproportionately on the under 10m fleet.  
The most immediate risk is that Defra and the MMO will adopt defensive positions 
and revert to command and control, whilst most people in the industry will conclude 
that there is little purpose in co-operating with Government. They will be bitter 
about the outcome and have a strong sense of betrayal.  

 
33. However, now is the time for engagement. The Government could use its new found 

regulatory freedoms to improve the lot of the industry, to introduce a modern and 
more effective grants regime and to work collaboratively with local authorities and 
LEPs to strengthen coastal communities. The fishing industry is used to adversity 
and despite the problems caused by the pandemic has kept going.  With appropriate 
encouragement and support pragmatism will come into play, and there is scope for 
Plymouth to build on its existing work and achievements in this area.   

  

Page 17



 12 

Annex A  
     
South West Fisheries  UK share 

Species ICES areas 2020 2021 2025 

     
Anglerfish VII 17.98% 21.22% 23.38% 
Cod VII e-k  7.88% 9.30% 10.24% 
Haddock VII, VIII, IX, X, Cecaf 34.1.1 10.00% 16.00% 20.00% 
Hake VI & VII; Vb of XII & XIV  17.97% 19.67% 20.80% 
Herring VIIe and VIIf 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 
Herring VIIg,h,j,k 0.12% 0.12% 0.12% 
Megrims VII 14.34% 18.63% 21.50% 
Nephrops VII 32.80% 38.32% 42.00% 
Plaice VIIa 51.12% 51.11% 51.11% 
Plaice VIId,e 29.08% 29.64% 30.00% 
Plaice VIIf,g 23.44% 25.14% 26.26% 
Plaice VIIhjk 12.60% 15.75% 17.91% 
Pollack VII 17.44% 21.97% 25.00% 
Saithe VII, VIII, IX, X, Cecaf 34.1.1 13.66% 15.00% 15.00% 
Skates and rays VIa-b & VIIa-c, e-k 25.85% 28.94% 31.01% 
Common Sole VIId 19.23% 19.69% 20.00% 
Common Sole VIIe 58.73% 61.03% 62.50% 
Common Sole VIIf,g 28.10% 30.65% 32.33% 
Common Sole VIIh,j,k 16.67% 16.67% 16.67% 
Sprat VIIde 52.50% 71.40% 84.00% 
Whiting VIIbcdefhk 10.73% 11.05% 11.27% 

 
  

Page 18



 13 

Annex B  
 
 
 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Call for Evidence 

 

 

I am a fish merchant based in Looe who has exported fish for the last 20 years. 

 

Since 1st January we haven’t exported anything due to the excessive red tape having 

to commit a lot of money to a fiscal rep in France to deal with the vat element and 

Heath certificate costs. 

 

I could go on, as even the companies that are trying to export are finding the loads 

are getting rejected or worse sent back on the slightest error with the paperwork.  

 

I amongst others have put the question directly to George Eustice and have been 

interviewed by the BBC. 

 
I’m not sure politically what can be done at this stage to ease the problem, but this 

had brought an abrupt end to what was previously a profitable export trade for us. 

Page 21 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Call for Evidence 

 

 

Good afternoon, 

 

I export live crab and lobster bought in Plymouth and part of the catch is sold to 

Europe. I am now entering my 42 nd year of working in this industry sector. 

 

The main trade barriers I see are the costs of documentation and the inflexibility of 

the health certification process which does not allow for mixed consignor shipments 

on one truck. 

 

The catch certificate system will in time be difficult to reconcile because it doesn’t 

recognise the difference between elog catch data and export weights. The live 

crustacean sector has mortality and consumed weight loss which means what the 
fishermen catch is never going to equate to the export catch certificates. 

 

Hope this is helpful. 

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Call for Evidence 

 

I am a 25 year old fisherman and boat owner working from Plymouth.  

 

The deal the government has struck on fishing since leaving the eu is a complete sell 

out, its a very complicated business dealing with fishing quotas. We will see next to 

no benefit on the quota they have negotiated as most of it is for useless pelagic 

species which is only use to the large company owned trawlers. To give an example 

in the summer we often have 50kg of cod quota per month which is next to nothing 

we catch that in the first day of the month and it gets dumped from then on in. They 

are talking about a very small increase of maybe 5% which is no help at all.  

 

The current situation with exports of fish not and shellfish to the eu not going 

smoothly combined and the coronavirus pandemic meaning all restaurants in the UK 

are shut has been crippling. I would say on average fish is selling for half normal 
market value, personally I have switched to fishing for scallops as the price was 

holding a slightly better compared to the fish but within the last week or so the 

scallop price has also dropped. The fish prices have been well down now since 

around March.  

 

Pressure needs putting on the government to sort the problems with exports. We 

are still importing French products helping the French economy in these difficult 

times but the French will not accept ours and it really is time our government had a 

backbone and use any means necessary to make things run more smoothly. Some 

boats would benefit from some further financial support as people I know are 

struggling to pay loans on fishing boats and support families.  

 

I hope that this is of some use to you.  

 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement - Fisheries
	EU-UK Agreement - Fisheries 20210105

	5 Written  Evidence
	Call  for Evidence - 2
	Call for Evidence - 3


